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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium
India Private Limited (“the Company™) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the
cash flows statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as * the Ind AS Financial Statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements read together with other notes thereon give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™)} and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAT") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report including Annexures to Annual Report
but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Management’s Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other imregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statement. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these Ind AS financial statement based on our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid Ind AS financial
statement;
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ii.

iii.

v.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law related to preparation aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-B”; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’ s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence,
reporting required as per provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable,

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements — Refer Note 30 (B) to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Company has no long-term centracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The management has represented that that no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate




Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on the reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to
our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement.

(b)  The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable
audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation
contains any material misstatement.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend
declared and/or paid during the year the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 01, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 040714N

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
M. No. 517638

UDIN:

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 10-05-2024



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Member of CMR-TOYOTSU
Aluminium India Private Limited (‘the company’) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31% March 2024,

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report for the year ended 31t March 2024.

i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which
all PPE are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, However, the
same has not been carried out during the year. But, management has committed to
carried out the same in next financial year.

{¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, the title deeds of all immovable properties are
held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition)} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder

if) (a) During the year, management has conducted physical verification of inventories
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of
security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company
in respect of current assets held by it and offered as security with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company of
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iv)

vi)

vii}

respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed on verification
of same with books of accounts.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company did not grant any loans or advances in the nature of loans, unsecured to the
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. However, the
company has made investment in other company during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(c) to (f) of the order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
investments made, during the year are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security provided.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company prescribed
by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(8)  According to the records of the Company, the company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of Goods & Service tax, Provident fund,
Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March, 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable,

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the company examined by us, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales- tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax on account of any dispute are as follows:-




Name of
the Statue

Nature of Dues Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
(in") amount relates | is pending

Tamil Nadu
Value added
Tax Rules
2007

Demand raised on 12,14,655/- F.Y 2015-16 Commissioner

turnover

Income Tax
Act, 1961

Demand raised under 4,37,25,487/- | F.Y.2020-21 CIT (Appeals)
section 68 of Income Tax

Act

viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a Financial
Institution, Bank, government (both state and central). The company does not have
any outstanding debenture during the year,

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority or any other lender.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not taken any term loan during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
taken any funds during the year, from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associates.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, company does not
have any securities held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

account of mismatch of (Appeal) (ST) Chennai




xi)

xii)

xiii)

xiv)

Xv)

Xvi)

Xvii)

xviii)

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit
procedures performed during the year, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
Company by its officers/employees have been noticed or reported during audit.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢} According to information and explanations given to us by the management, there
are no whistle-blower complaints received by the company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the
accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for
the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with directors. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable and hence the provisions of section
192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during the
year,




Xix)

xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII
to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous financial year, to a
Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financial year in
compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 040714N

CA. Devesh Sharma

Partner

M. No. 517638

UDIN:

Place; Faridabad

Dated: 10-05-2024



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors® Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial
Statement of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium India Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CMR-TOYOTSU
Aluminium India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial conirols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Tn our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 040714N

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
M. No. 517638

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 10-05-2024



CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
tAmaunt In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equlpment 3 10,843.17 10,325.91
Capltal work In progress 3 87093 1,269.72
Right-of-Use Assets 3 1,253.86 916.74
Intangible assets 4 0.00 0.63
Financial assets
L Investments Sa 76.00 .
i. loans sh 2.63 .
iil. Other financial assets 5 205.62 121.02
Deferred tax assels (net) 7 - -
Nan Current tax assets (net) 432.88 59.38
Other non-current assets 8 60.17 265.83
13,745.31 12,963.23
Current assels
Inventorles 9 9,066.25 9,860.81
Flnancial assets
I Loans Sh 2.50 439
Ii. Trade Recelvables 10 11,950.73 10,498.66
1il. Cash and cash equivalents 1141) 49.58 919
Iv. Bank balances other than (1) above 11 (i) 2591 82.00
v. Other financial assets 6 3B.66 29.61
Current Tax Assets 31.04 27507
QOther current assets 8 2,194.76 2652.56
23,359.43 23,412.69
Assets Held For sale 4.03 -
Total Assels 37!108.77 36,375.92
EQUITY ARD LIABILITIES
Equity
Share eapital 12 9,650.00 9,650.00
Ozher equity
1. Retained earnings 13,3B5.25 10,254.24
Tatal equity 21,035.25 19,904.24
LIABILITIES
Non- current liablllttes
Financlal iabllitles
|. Borrawlngs 13 600.55 1,201.08
Ii. Lease liabllity 40 298,53 -
Deferred tax liabllity {net) 7 622.70 581.78
Long Term Provisions 14 48.07 413,23
Other non- current llabilltles 15 - -
1,569.85 1,826.08
Current liabilitles
Flnaneial Babllitles
I. Borrowings 13 6.904.21 6,779.14
il Lease liabllity 40 68.28
ill. Trade pavables 16
-Due to micro small and small enterprises 1817 47.28
<Dues to others 1,947.50 7,148.82
tv. Other financial llabilities 17 33437 24422
Current tax Nabilities(net) 18 - -
Short term Provistons 14 55.18 50.75
QOther current [iabllitles 15 5,154.56 375.3%
14,502.67 14 645,60
Total Uabilitles 15,073.52 16,471.68
Total equity and llabilities 37,108.77 36,375.92

The accompanying rotes form an integral part of these financdial statements

As per our repert of even date

For M/fs Goel Sharma & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN ;- 040714N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

& Mohih Aganial
(Directyr)

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
Membership Not- 517638

VN 2YS [R62Q Ble o §7Qel |

Place: Faridabad

pae: {o}oS } 2024

{Company Secretary}
M.N: AG9S73

of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

echandra Singh Rana
[Chief Executive Qfficer)




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated}

Particulars Notes Fortheyearended For the year ended March
March 31, 2024 31,2023

REVENUE
Revenue from operations 19 1,37,772.96 1,21,020.34
Qther income 20 421.13 225.21
Tatal income 1,38,194.09 1,21,245.55
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 21 1,16,883.73 1,02,505.91
Purchase of traded goods 22 4,978.03 5,402.32
{Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finlshed goods 23 952.34 (339.69}
Employee benefits expense 24 2,551.72 2,496.29
Finance costs 25 2,016.15 1,145.55
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 1,166.93 1,002.1%
Other expenses 27 B,139.55 7,272.12
Total expenses 1,36,688.45 1,19,484.69
Profit before tax 1,505.64 1,760.86
Tax expense: 7
Current tax 355.09 372.21
Mat credit adjustment . -
Tax Earller Year {23.17) 13.03
Deferred tax (Credit)/charge relating to earlier years 21.88 (2.29)
Deferred tax {Credit)/charge 16.96 72,93
Profit for the year 1,124.87 1,303.98
Other Comprehensive [ncome 28
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plan 820 6.79
tngome tax effect {2.06} [1.71
Other Comprehensive Profitfloss 5.14 5.08
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,131.01 1,310.06
Earnings per share:(nominal value per share of Rs 10 each} 29
1) Basic 117 1.35
2) Diluted 1.17 1.35

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financtal statements.
As per our report of even date

For M/s Goe! Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N

v

CA. Devesh Sharma

Partner
Membership No:- 517638 . N
uDIN: 298 173 62 B B T STyt

e ——-——f{Dlreeior
DIN 00595

Place: Faridabad

Date: {o|G S | 202t

(Company Secretary)

M.N: ABS573

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR TOYOTSY ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

[Director)
DIN 07175149

hreechandra Singh Rana
{Chief Executive Officer)




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated]

Particulars For the year endad March 31, |  For the year ended March 31,
2023 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 1,505.64 1,760.86
|Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortlsation 1,166.93 1,002.19
Interast Income {268.15) {2.98)
Other Incomrehence Income 8.20 679
Forward premlum an realised and unrealised commodity contracts - -
Loss/(Prafit) on sale of fixed asset - {0.03)
Sundry Balance Wrlte Back -
Finance costs 2.016.15 1,100.80
2,923.13 2,106.78
Operating Profit before ad[ustments 4,428.77 31,867.64
AdJustments:
Decrease/ {Increase) in inventories 794.57 [2,010.52)
Decrease/(l ) in trade recelvabl {1,452.07) 491.47
Decrease/ (Increase) in Financial assets {3.90) 56.05
Decrease/ (Increase} in other assets 373.60 880.64
[Decrease)/ increase In trade payables 15,209.43) 5,529.78
[Decrease)/tncrease In Other financial labllltles 4.90 {504.53)
{Decrease)/increase In Other Liabilitles 4,779.57 {35.47)
{Oecrease)fincrease in Provislons 9.27 117
Change [n the adjustments (703.,48] 4,408.58
Cash generated from operations 3,725.29 8,276.22
Less : Taxes pald {471.47] {687.45}
Net cash flow from operating activitles {A) 3,253.87 7,588.77
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment Including QWIP {1,336.55) [1,975.63)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 891 34.69
Investment in Isharays Energy Private Limited {76.001 -
Interest recelved 266.14 0.7%
Investment In flxed deposits 56.09 {82.00)
Net cash generated/{used) Ininvesting activitles: (B} {1.081.41} {2,022.19)
Net cash flow from Anancing ectivities:
Proceeds/{Repayment) from/fof barrowings fincluding finance lease) net (168.64) {4,510.29)
Interest pald {2.023.42) {1.099.60]
Net cash generated/{used] from financng activitles: (€) 12,132.06] {5,610.00)
Nek change In Cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 40.40 {43.43)
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year (refer Note 11(1) 9.19 52.61
Cash B cash cquivalents as at end of the year {refer Note 11{i)) 49.59 9.19
Cash and cash equivalent: Ise of the following
Cash on hand (Note 11(1H 3.10 2.10
On current accounts [Note 11{1)) 4648 7.08
On cash credit account (Note 11(1) . 0.01

Depasits with maturity less than 90 days (Note 11{1)) - .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/fs Goel Sharina & Assoclates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LUMITED

Chartered Actountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 030714N

€A, Devesh Sharma
Partner
Membership No:- 517638
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hrecchandra Singh Rana
{Chef Executive Officer)

Place: Faridabad
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CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity- Reserves and
itv Sh .
Equity Share capital Surplus
Particulars g Total equity
No. of shares | Amount Retai.ne Total
earnings
As at March 31, 2022 9,65,00,000 9,650.00 §,844.18 8,944,18 18,564.18
Add: Profit for the year - 1,304.98 1,304.98 1,304.98
Add: Other comprehensive i 5.08 5,08 5.08
income/{loss) for the year
As at March 31, 2023 9,65,00,000 9,650.00 10,254.24 10,254.24 19,504.24
Add: Profit for the year - 1,124.87 1,124.87 1,124.87
f\dd: Other comprehensive } 6.14 6.14 6.14
income/(loss) for the year
Add: Received during the year - - - -
As at March 31,2024 9,65,00,000 9,650.00 11,385.25 11,385.25 21,035.25
o The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates Eor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N
- <
Mohan-Agatwal 3 ay,
CA. Devesh Sharma (Director} (Director)
Partner DIN 00595232 DIN 07175149
Mermbership No:- 517638
UDIN: 5 Y1 H6288CT 2 Yoy g
Place: Faridabad Shreechandra 5ingh Rana

Date: ic loS' I )_,:,'),(T

Neelam
(Company Secretary)
M.N: AG9573

{Chief Executive Officer)




CMR-TOYOQTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1. Corporate information

CMR-TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED {the Campany) is a Private Limited Company
domiciled in India, incorporated w.e.f. 4th July 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.
The company is manufacturer of Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys.

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 10, 2024.

2. Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements {financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (IND
AS compliant Schedule 111}, to the extent applicable

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost basis, except for the certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been
measured at fair value as per the requirements of the Ind AS.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting
estimates and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial
statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in note
3.25.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian Rupees
(‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.’), except per share data and unless stated otherwise and rounded off to nearest
lakhs.

3. Summary of material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to all
the years presented in the financial statements.

3.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affaris (“MCA”) has carried out amendments to the following
accounting standards. The effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no
impact on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The Company has not early adopted
any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(ii) Ind AS 103: Business Combinations

(iii) Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28: Definition of Recoverable Amount

(iv) Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104, Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform




MCA issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Compani.es
Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by a Company in its ﬁnancne‘il
statements. These amendments are effective for financial years starting on or after April

01, 2021.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

3.3 Foreign currencies

The Company'’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement

or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.




Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
maeasured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-manetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCi or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.4 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.




Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, and significant liabilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

3.5 Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contro! of the goods are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods before
transferring them to the customer.

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances,




government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence,
these are excluded from the revenue.

The Company had assumed that recovery of excise duty (applicable till June 30, 2017) flows to the
Company on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which
forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not, Since the
recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue included excise duty
till June 30, 2017.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives, etc. The Company
estimates the variable consideration with respect to above based on an analysis of accumulated
historical experience. The Company adjusts estimate of revenue at the earlier of when the most
likely amount of consideration expected to receive changes or when the consideration becomes
fixed.

Sale of services

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of
completion is measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized at
measured value of conversion charges. The Company collects service tax/ GST on job work on
behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company.
Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Export incentive

Export incentive under the EPCG scheme are accounted in the year of export of goods considering
certainty in tha collection of export proceeds.

3.6 Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an assets
item, including non-monetary granis at fair value, are recognised in the balance sheet as deferred
income in the liability side of balance sheet. The grant set up as deferred income is recognise




profit or loss on a systematic basis. Government grant relates to required it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs.

The company recognised government grants related to EPCG obligation till the date of transition
Is recognised as deferred government grant and is taken to income on fulfilment of export
obligation.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair
value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities.




Income Taxes

The income tax expense comprise of current and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit
and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

{a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or [oss.

(b} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized, except:

{a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that

the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or




part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has hecome probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
vear when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
heen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in ‘OCI’ or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OC! or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7  Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises
its purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade discounts
and rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant
parts are required to be replaced at regular intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their specific useful life. When
an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and
cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is available for use, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are
incurred. However, in situations where such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is
probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included
in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of
Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing upto Rs 10,000/ is charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.




The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining
components are depreciated over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted
appropriately, at each reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives,
residual values and / or depreciation method are accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the
depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life. The cost and the
accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are de-
recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / {losses) are included in the statement
of profit and loss within other expenses / other income.

3.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Software is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the
respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license not exceeding six years from
the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are
available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If expected useful life is significant
different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3,10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.




When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a
component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recaverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is [imited to the extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at
the revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.11 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any




accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies 3.24 on
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are fixed
payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental horrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of [ease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases except
in case of lease contracts with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the
company to continue using the leased premises for a period longer than the 11 months and
considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal of the lease
term for future periods, thus basis the .substance and economics of the arrangements,
management believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related
parties have been determined considering the period for which management has an economic
incentive to use the leased asset {i.e. reasonable certain to use the asset for the said period of




economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period is based on management assessment
of various factors including the remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are recoghised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

3.12 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Cost of raw materials and stores and spares is determined on Fist in first Out (FIFQO) basis
except for goods in transit which is valued at specifically identified Purchase cost.

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Inventories qualifying as hedged items in a falr value hedge relationship are adjusted for the
hedging gain or loss on hedged item.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

3.13 Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can he made of the amount of the
obligation. :




When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

3.14 Contingent Liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events nat wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

3,15 Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, contribution to plans,
defined benefit plans and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by the Company employees.

i) Defined contribution plans — Provident fund
Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The
Company makes specified manthly contributions towards provident fund which are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement of
profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.




i) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value
of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under this plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling {if applicable) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss
as employee benefit expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined
benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

iii) Other employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of
employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats compensated absences expected to be
carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date.

3.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive incame (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.




In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financia! asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

if) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.
Eurther in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business
model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method
or at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financia! liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the criteria under Ind AS 109 are satisfied. All other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. -
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a} Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS
109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

h) Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under IND AS 103. A financial fiability (or a part of the financial liability) is derecognized
from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.
The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted
market prices and dealer guotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of those instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
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simultaneously.

3.17 Investment in Subsidiary




“|nvestments in subsidiaries Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS,
the Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries at the previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2016.”

3.18 Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge
risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to statement of profit and loss.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.20 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

3.21 Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business

performance at an overall Company level as one segment "Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys.”.

3,22 Earnings per share




Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder
of the Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are
treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.23 Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes {such as
foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for both the current
and the comparative period in Note 9.

3.24 Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts,
forward commodity contracts and currency future contracts to hedge risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations and commodity price risks. The Company also holds commodity
future contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in price of commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that
is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective, is recognized on balance
sheet and measured initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Hedge Accounting

The Company designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the
exposure to changes in prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and
existing inventory.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge
instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.




The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the
nature of the risk being hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of
hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge effectiveness criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging
instrument and the hedge item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an
unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative
change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as
an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

3.25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims agalnst
the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to
occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently
involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of
future events.

b) Revenue recognition and presentation

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, L.e. whether it has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of
services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company has

concluded that they operating on a principal to principal basis in all its revenue arrangements.

Estimates and assumptions




The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to
the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purpases. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and
other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries.

c) Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible.

d) Property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 4(a).




e) Intangible assets
The carrying value of intangible assets has been disclosed in note 4(b).

f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.




CMA TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM [NDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Q @
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 UL
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Computers and
Particulars Leasehold Land Bulldings Plant and Office Equipment Furniture & data processing Vehicles Total Capital work in ROU Assats
equipment fixtures progress i
machines
Cost
As at March 31, 2022 5,321.41 £,587.59 49.38 61.65 45.48 160.67 12,227.19 1,474.23 581.30
Additions 58.95 2,066.25 19.93 17.01 7.31 - 2,169.44 - -
Disposals / adjustments - {45.75) - - {0.80) - {46.55) (204.51) -
As at March 31,2023 - 5,380.36 8,608.09 69,31 78.66 52.99 160.67 14,350.08 1,269.72 981.30
Additions 4.39 1,581.16 12.66 - 5.84 5.43 1,609.48 - 416.09
Disposals / adjustments (69.92) {0.09) {2.65) {0.39) {73.05) {398.74) .
Asat March 31,2024 - 5,384.75 10,119.33 81.88 78,66 56.18 165.71 15,886.51 870.98 1,397.39
Depreciation
Asat March 31,2022 - 834.16 2,102.47 24.82 832 27.02 5057 3,047.35 - 54.94
Charge for the year . 192.32 750.33 7.40 6.67 10.15 17.84 984.71 . 9.62
Disposals / adjustments {11.14) {0.75) - {11.89) - -
As at March 31,2023 - 1,026.48 2,841.66 32.22 1499 3642 £8.41 4,020.17 - 64.56
Charge far the year 195.21 B847.01 10.78 7.52 8.44 18.34 1,087.31 - 7897
Disposals / adjustments {61.79) {0.08) [1.9%) {D.36) {64,14) - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 1,221.69 3,626.88 42,92 22,51 42.95 B6.38 5,043.34 - 143.53
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 - 4,487.25 4,485.12 24.56 53.33 19.46 110.10 9,179.84 1,474.23 926.36
As at March 31,2023 - 4,353.88 5,766.43 37.08 63.67 16.57 92.26 10,329.91 1,269.72 916.74
As at March 31, 2024 - 4,163.06 6,492.45 38.96 56.15 13.24 79.32 10,843.17 870.98 1,253.86

Note

# The numbers reported are net {addition-deletian).
1) Term loan from SBI is collatorally secured by second pari-passu charge over the entire fixed assets of the company, present and future including Equitable Mortgage of factory land and building at Plot No A-4 & A-5 Sipcot
Industrial Park, Pillaipakkam, Chennai, and factory land and building at G 108 Pt SIPCOT Industrial Park, Vallam - Vadagal, Chennai,

2) Term loan from HOFC Bank is secured by first pari-passu charge over the entire fixed assets of the said company, present and future including Equitable Mortgage of factary tand and building at Plot No A-4 & A-5 Sipcot

Industrial Park, Pillaipakkam, Chennai, Valtam and factory land at G-108 Pt. SIPCOT Industrial Park, Vallam - Vadagal, Chennai.

3) Cash credit and working capital Credit facility is secured by way of second pari-passu charge aver the fixed assets including Equitable mortgage of factory land & building at Plot No. A-4, A-5 SIPCOT Industrial Park at
Pillaipakkam, Sriperumpudur, District Kanchipuram, Chennai and equitable mortgage of factory and land and building at G-108/2, Sipeot Industrial Park, Vallam-Vadagal, Chennai.




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED @
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4, intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software
Gross block
As at March 31, 2023 A49.06
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2024 49,06
Amortization
As at March 31, 2023 48.449
Charge for the year 0.62
Disposals
As at March 31, 2024 49.06
Net black
As at March 31, 2023 0.63
As at March 31, 2024 0,00

Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule
Asat March 31" 2024

Amount of CWIP for a perfod of Total

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Project in prograss 488.85 344.06 38.07 - 870.98
Projects temporarily suspended -
Total 488.85 344.06 38.07 - 870.98
As at March 31' 2023

Amount of CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Project in progress 1,176.05 93.68 - - 1,265.72
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,176.05 93.68 - - 1,269.72




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMIKIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes tofinanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, uniess otherwlse stated)

S(3). Investments

lavestment {unquated)
Investmentin (sharays Energy Private Umited*
F60000 {March 31, 2023: NiL) cquity shares of Bs. 10 ¢ach Fully paid up

Durlag the year, the Cempany has entesed into Power supply and Offtake Agl dated 301h

Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31,2023

7600 -

75.00 -
of solar energy power plant with Isharays Energy Private Limited. Pursuant

2023 for impt,

tothe af id g7 the G has been aloted 7,60.000 shares dated 013t March 2024,

5(t}. toans (at amortlzed cost)

Loans to employees
Untecured, consldered good

&, Other Flnanclal assets

Unsecured, congldered good

{1 Derivative Instruments at fale value

Mark to market gain on commodity futures - Recelvable from holding company
Mark to market galn on currency futures 3t falr value through

orcfitorloss

|} Unsecured, considered good unfess otherwlie stated (at amortired eost)
Security deposts
tnterest accrued on fied deposits and olhers
with '] rity of more than 12 months
[Note 11)**

Quality Claim recenable
Tatal

Han-current Current
Asat Azat Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31,2023 March 31,2033  March 31, 2023

2.63 i 250 4.39
2.63 . .50 4.39
Non-current Currenl
Asat Asat Azt Asat

March 31,2024  Warch 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

18333 10005 012 2961
201 224 0.00 .
0.28 18.73 .
- - 38.54 -
105.52 11102 30.65 29.61

** Deposits with remalring matutity of merg than 12 months are held as 10% margin money agatnst the Bank Guarantees of As 132.13 Lacs (Mar-23; A4 132.13 Locs) for previsional ascessments of Custom

duty.
8, Other Current/ton Current assets

Unsecured, consldered good

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Azat Asat
March 31,2028  Margh31,2023  March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance with Goverament Authonties - . 405.42 1,726.76
MEIS Lcenses o hand - - 0.37 -
Capital etvances 1.58 203.35 - .
Contract Assets - Unkilled Revenue - . 37.60 12050
Advance to emplayees §gainit £xpenses - . 5.85 4.34
Advance 1o suppliers

-Related Parties” [Refer fote 31) . - 369,62 17.10

-Others - - 1,285.82 67137
Prepald expenses SB.59 62.48 0.1 25.28
Flem« ferp of y of aw materials - - Q.62 1.91
Export Incentive Recoverable - . 158 3L
Deposittowards back wages - . 53.63 53,63
Expenses recaverable . : 353 032
Total £€0.17 265.2) !,lﬂgﬁ 2,652.96
Note -
Entlre other current asscts of the G v have been b I g2ged 1o seture g1 of the G {refer note 130
9. inventorles

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Raw materials? 8,017.13 8.0005¢
(including RS 2450.0% Lacs (March 31, 2023: As 2,012.91 Lacs)
@ transht
Flnlshed goods* S84.82 1537.16
{Including Rs KO (Mar 31, 2023: Rs 384,74 Lacs) in tranit
Stores and spares®* 464,30 3311
{Incleding As Nil{Mar 31,2023: Rs Nilj in transit)
Tetal 9,066,125 5,860.81

————rmaia————

*In transit Indude As Nd {Mar 31,2023: Rs 317.18tacs) from holding company "CMR Green Technolagtes Lid”™

* in wransit include Rs kil {Mar 31,2023: Rs. 67.56 lacs) from leflow subsidisry "CMR Nikked India Pyt L1d"

*%n ransit include Rs Kil (March 31,2023: R Nif} trom holding company “CMR Green Technologies Ltd”
o910 yrangitinclude R KU {March 31,23: As Nil} fram leflow subsidiary company “CMR Chiho Industries India Pt Ltd”

#inventories vafued Reduted by Rs 327.38 Llae

#1n transitinclude Rs Nil (Mar 31,2023: 988.52 Lacs) frem holding company "CMR Green Technologies Lud*

# Falr value hedges are malnly uied to hedge the exposure to change In fair value of commodity price risks, the falr value adjustment remains part of the carrying value of Inventary and taken to profit and

loss whien the fnventoty 3 gither sold or consumed,

The Companv bhat extended falr value hedee aceounting on its Lnventory which farms part of raw material durlng the vear.

Note:-

All type of $1a¢ks hying in the C /s isewhere (including GIT) have been hypothecated/mortgaged 1o tecure borrowings of the Company {refer note 131
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10, Trade Recelvables
Asar Azat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Receivables from others 11,957.4% 10.111.85
Less: Provision for doubtiul debrs 8010 90.10
Net Aecehvables 1186739 10,021.75
Receivables fzom related parties (Refer Note 31) 8134 476.91
Total 11,950.73 10,498.66

Ing for a parlod dlng six months from the datn
they are due far payment
Unseoured, considered good 66,29 119
ELJD 119,
Other racelvables
Unsecured, cansidercd good 11,884.44 10,457.47
11583-1.44 10,497.4%

Total Trade recelvables 1195073 10,498.66

e — =

1. For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 31
2. Trader 1] F{ 1) interest bearing and are generatly on terms of 0 to 30 days
3, Entire trade bles of the C have been hypoth 4/ mortgaged to secure borrewings of the Company {refer aote 13)

Trade Recelvabie agelng schedule

As at March 31, 2022
|Particutars Cutrent but nat & Outstanding for the Fsllowling petlods from due date of
tess than § Months !5 Months- 1 Year | 1-2Years 2:3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Recetvables - contidered good 11.156.57 724.30 66.29 357 . - 11,950,793
Undisputed Trade Recetvables — which have significant
|increase in eredit risk
Undisputed Trade recelvable = credit impaired - : - - . . .
Disputed Trade recchatles - considered good . . - . . . .
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase tn N . . . j j
eradit risk
Disputed Trace tecaivables = credit impaired - . - - - . B
Tatal 11,156.57 714.30 66.29 357 - - 11,950.73
As 31 March 31,2023
O for the follawing perlods from due date of paymen
[Particul: t di
s Curent bot Ao Less than 6 Months |6 Months- 1 Year | 1-2 Yeans 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Recetvables — contideres good £.109.10 2,388.37 119 - - - 10.498.66
1 Trade bies — which hava sig B . ] }
ingrease In credit risk
Undispyted Trade recehvable = credit impalred - - - . - .
Disputed Trage receivables - considered good - . - . - .
Disputed Trade receivables = which have significant Increatein . : .
credit itk
Dhputed Trade receivables = credit Impalred - - - - - - -
Total H,109.1¢ 2,333.37 1.19 - * - 10,39B8.66
11. (1) Cash and cash equivalents
Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cash on hang 0 210
Balantes with banky:
- Cutreny azcount 4648 708
- Cash credit actounts - 001
+ Deposit nat more than 50 days - -
Total 43.58 9.19
{71) Other hank balince
Detalis of other bank balancss is as follows:
Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Deposits with remainlng matueity of fess than 12 months 2591 82.00
P with [ 4 Ity of mare than 12 menths® 2028 18.73
46.19 100.73
Less : Distlased under Qther financlal assets [refer note 6) (20.28} {18.73)
1less:- Dlisclased under Cash and Cash Equivatent (eefer note 114i]) - -
25.91 £1.00
=
= *Deposits with romalniag maturity of less than 12 months Rs 2.40 Lacs (March 31,2023; Rs 1643¢5) are held as margin money galnit the Letter of credit and Bank and Depi with

maturity of less than 12 months of Rs 21 Lacs (March 31,2023: Rs 65 Lacs) perting Lo unipentamount an CSR eeposited.

For the purpose of the statement of ¢ash flow, cash and cash equivatents comprise of the following:

Asat Asat
M.

arch 31,2028 Macch 31,2023

Cash on hand 110 .10
Batynces with banks:
- Current aczount 25,48 .03

« Deposit not more than 90 days .
Total 4558 §.18




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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12. Share Capltal

Authorized shares

96,500,000 {31 March 2023: 96,500,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each

Issued shares, subscribed and fully paid -up shares
96,500,000 (31 March 2023:96,500,000} equity shares of Rs.10 each

a. Reconciliation of no. of shares

Equity Shares

At tha begianing of the period/year
Isswed during the period/year
Atthe end of the perfad/year

b. Terms/ rights attached to equlty shares:

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
9,650.00 9,650.00
9,650,00 9,650.00
9,650.00 9,650.00
9,65,00,000 9,65,00.000
9,65,00,000 9,65,00,000

1) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. egulty shares having par value of Rs 10/- each. The holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote per share and

entitled to raceive dividends as declared from time to time.

li} 1 the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remalning assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the company

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % holding in the No. of shares % holding In the
equity shares equity shares
CMR Green Technologles Ltd (the holding Company) 6,75,50,000 70.00% 6,75,50,000 70.005%
Toyota Tsusho Corporation 2,89,50,000 30.00% 2,89,50,000 30.00%
Total 9,65.00,000 100.00% 9,65,00,000 100.00%

d. The Company has not (ssued any shares pursuant to any contract without payment belng recelved in cash or as fully paid up by way of bonus shares. The

Company has not bought back any shares.

e, Shares held by holding company

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder No. of thares % holdingin the No. of shares % holding In the
equity shares equity shares
CMR Green Technologies Ltd (the holding Company} 6,75,50,000 70.00% 6,75,50,000 70.00%
f. Detalls of shares held by Promuoters
No. of sharas at the
No. durl
Promoter Name beginning of the Change during 0. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
year the year end of the year the year
Toyota Tsusho Corgoration 2,89,50,000 - 2,89,50,000 30.00% -
As at March 31, 2023
No.of shares at the Change during No. of shares at the % change during
Promater Name hegln:l;gronhe the year ond of the year % of Total Shares the year
CMR Green Technologles L1d {the holding Cempany) 6,75,50,000 - 6,75,50,000 70.00% -
Toyata Tsusho Carporation 2,89,50.000 - 2,89,50,000 30.00% .

12(b). Other equity &

Retalned earnings:

Opening balance

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comgrehenslve ineome for the year
Closing balance

As ot March 31,2024 Asat March 31, 2023

10,254.22 8,944.17
1,124.88 1,304.97
6.13 5.08
11,385.23 10,254.22

Retalned aarnings refler to net earnings not paid out as dividends, but retained by the Company to be relnvested in its core business. This amount Is avallable for

distribution of dividends to i1s equity shareholders.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

13. Borrawings
2) Details of borrowings are as follows:
Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

From Banks
Secured
Term loan from banks 1,201.08 1,801.63 - -
Waorking capital loan - - 6,000.00 2,597.63
Cash credit 303.68 1,141.04
Unsecured
Bills discounted - - - 2,435.92
Total 1,201.08 1,801,63 6,303.68 6,178.59
The above amountincludes
Setured borrowing 1,201.08 1,801.63 6,303.68 3,738.67
Unsecured barrowing - - - 2,439.92
Current maturity of Non-currant barrowing {600.53) {600.55) 500.53 600.55
Net Amount 600.55 1,201.08 6,904.21 6,779.14
2. Term loans from banks/ financial Institution
The maturity profile, security and rate of interest of the shove loans are as given helow:

Loan Loan Amount Rate of Interest of Repayment Terms of borrowings | Security for borrowlngs

(Amount in fakhs} horrowings outstanding outstandlng outstanding
tndian Rupee Loan
March 31, 2024: 1,201.08 Lacs The term loan is repayable in equal
HOFC Bank .46% - 8.
March 31, 2023: Rs 1,801.63 Lacs | oo 8.9%% quarterly installment of Rs 150 lacs.| Fe ¢ Hote 2 below

Notes:

Term Loan from HDFC

a) The loan is secured against first pari-passu charge aver the entire fixed assels (MFA B IMFA} of the company, present and future including Equitable Mortgage of factery land and
bullding at Plat No A-4 & A-5 Sipeot Industrial Park, Pillaipakkam, Chennai, Vallam and factory land a1 G-108 P1. SIPCOT Industrial Park, Vallam - Vadagal, Chennal and collaterally

secured by extenslon of second pari-passu charge charge over current assets of the company.

b) Second Parl Passu charge on the entire current assets of the company

Short Term Borrowings
The security and rate of Interest of the above loans are as piven below:

fi di
Loan Amaount Rate of Interest during Repayment terms Sceurlty
the period
Cash credit {secured)
. March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil
State Bank Of india Mareh 31, 2023 - Rs. 1079.40 lacs 7.70%- B.65% Repayable on demand Refer Note [a) below
March 31, 2024: Rs. 303.69 lacs "
. - 9. ) Ref )
HDFC Bank ‘Warch 31, 2023 - Rs, 5165 lacs 9.35% - 9.55% Repayable on demand efer Nate {a) below
WorkEng capltal demand leans-Indlan Rupees
{secured]
March 31, 2024: Rs. 2400 facs For a period not exceeding 3
RaL Bank March 31, 2023 - 3. 1581 65 lacs 733%-861% o nths from drawdown date Refer Note (a) below
March 31, 2024: Rs. 1100 facs Far a period not exceading 3
HOFC Bank arch 31, 2022 - Rs. 1015.99 lacs 7.80% - 8.00% manths from drawdown date Rater Mate (4} below
March 31, 2024: Rs. 2,500 Lacs far a period not exceeding 3
7. Refer tiot I
crec March 31, 2023 - 2439.92 $5% months fram drawdown date ader tigte (a) below
Nature of Sccurlty

1)'SBI led Consortium cf Bank wherein HDEC, Federal, Axis and RBL are the member banks along with 581 Bank.
*a) First pari -passu charge on entire current assets of CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited [both present and future) including hypothecation of all stocks of raw materials,
stares, spaces, stocks in process, finished goods, ete., lying In factory, go-downs, elsewhere and including goods in transi and receivables / book debts.
b} Second parl-passu charge aver the fixed assets of CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited, including Equitable martgage of factory land & bullding ar Plot No. A-4, A-5 SIPCOT
tndustrial Park at Pillgipakkam, Sriperumpudur, District Xanchipuram, Chennai and equitable mortgage of factory and land and building at G-108/2, Siprot Industrial Park, Vallam-

Vadagat, Chennai.
c} Corparate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologies Limited.

d} 75,00,000 shares of CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Pyt. Ltd {sharehalder is CMR Green Technologies Limited are pledged with extlusive charge to S8l

2)CTBC Bank

The facilities sanctioned by CTBC Bank are unsecured. CTBC bank has sanctioned bilt discounting facilities as main imit ampunting to 2500 lacs. The company has utilised 2500 laes

WCDL faciiities which Is the sub limit 10 main limit.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

15, Other current/non current liabilities

Statutory dues

[nterest on income tax
Advance from Customers
Deferred Government grant

Liability towards Corporate Social Responsibility

Non-current

Current

As at As at

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
48.07 43.23 17.96 15.43

- - 37.22 35.32

48.07 43.23 55.18 50.75

Non-current Current
Asat Asat As at Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 Wiarch 31, 2023
- - 781.34 140.83

- - 4,298.57 99.62

- - - 6.90

- - 74.05 128.04

- - 5,154.96 375.39
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CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16. Trade payables

a} Details of trade payables Is as follows:

Current
As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises 39.17 47.28
Dues to others
-Related Parties (Refer Note 31) 569.75 5,449.66
-Others 1,377.75 1,699.16
Total 1,986.66 7,196.10
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
a) Trade payables (other than related parties) are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
b) For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 31
As at Mareh 31, 2024
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 39.17 - - - 39.17
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,888.52 0.87 23.51 4.59 1,947.49
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
wJ 0t 1,927.69 30.87 23.51 4.59 1,986.66
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2.3 Years | More than 3 Years Taotal
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 47.28 - - - 47.28
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7.069.97 61.09 1.36 16.40 7.148.82
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - . .
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 7,117.25 51.09 1.36 16.40 7.196.10
17. Other financial liabilities
a} Detalls of other financlal liabilities carried 15 as follows:
Current
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{i) Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss:
Mark to market foss on cammaodity futures- Payable to holding company 97.46 93.37
[ii) Other financlal liabilities {at amortised cost)
Security deposits 13.66 v 15.66
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 12,591 20.19
Employee related payables 63.78 60.97
Creditors for capital expenditure 146.56 54.03
334.37 244,22
O;) Breakup of financial liabllitles at amortized cost:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Barrowings (Refer wo note 13) 7.504.76 7,980.23
Trade payables [Refer to note 16) 1,986.66 7,196.10
Other financial liabilities 334.37 294,22
9,825.80 15,420.55
18. Current tax llabilities {net)
As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Provision for taxation (net}
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Notes to finznclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless athenwise stoted}

19. Revenue fram operations

Revenue from ogerations
Sale of Products

Manufactured goods
Traded goods

Other eperating revenuc:

Sale of services*

Sale of Scrap and others®®
Export Incentive

Total revenue fram operations

{a) Timing, of revenue recognition
Products transferred at 3 posnt in bme:
Services rendesed at a point 10 ime

Total

{b) Reconciliation af of revenuer 1
Aevenue a5 per contracted price

Performance Oblipation

d with contract price

Forthe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1,11,882.23 95,512.41
5.218.21 5,416.03
37017 217.00
20,102.32 19,558.88
200.03 316.02
1,37,772.96 1,21,020.35
1,32.202.77 1,20,487.32
370.17 212.00
1,37,572.94 1,20,704.32
1,32,302.79 1.20.803.35

The Company reCORMSES revenue from sale of goods 3t the point in Lme when contral o the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on defivery of the goods.
The perfermance oblrgation 1s satisfied upan dehvery ol the goods and payment 15 generably due within 0to 90 days fram delivery.

* sale ol services is in the n3ture of job work executed

=+ gale of scrap and eiher is in the nature of segregated serap, ash and residue sales.

20. Otherincome

Interest on fixed depasits

Interest on receivables and others

Unreatised gain an commodity future cantracts (net)

Interest on balances of related parties {Refer to Note 31}

Farwdzd premum on reahised and uaredlited commodity conracts
#rofit & Loss 6n sales of Properny, Plant & Equipment

Exchange fluctuation {net)

21. Cost of materlal consumed
The detaits of cost of material consumed is as follows:

Raw matpeials:

Opemng stock
Add: Purchases duning the yeds
Less: Closing stock

22. Purchase of Stack in Trade

Purchase of Traded Goods

23. Change in Inventory of work in progress and Finished Goods

Opening stock:
Finished Goody
Traded Goods
Less: Closing stock:
Finished Goods
Teaded Goods

For the year ended for the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
2.34 190
165.81 1.09
0.32 43,69
40.36 44,75
43.56 645
- 2.02
£2.74 127.30
421.13 225.21
2=
For the year ended For the year ended
HMarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
8.000.54 6,308.31
1,16,900.32 1,04,193.14
{8.017.13) {8,000.54}
1,16,883.73 1,02,505.91
For the year ended For the year ended
niarch 31, 2024 March 31,2023
4.978.03 5,402.32
4,976.03 4023z,
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
1,537.16 1,197.46
584.82 153216
952.34 !333.59!

5%
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CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
totes to financlal statements {or the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

24. Employee beaclits cxpense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to providest and other funds
Gratgity

Stadf wallare expenses

Dis¢losure in compliance with Ind AS-19 on Employee Benefits has been given in Note 32
25. Finance cost

Interest on rupee term (0ans & others *
Other linange cests

Interest ta related parties {Refer Note 31)
tnterest on tease liabity

* Including interest on Income tan of Rs. Nl { 31 March 2023 : Rs N}

26, Depreciation and amoertization expense

Depreciation of langible assets {Refer to note 3}
Cepreccation on ROU assets
Amartization of iIntangible assets (Refer (o note 4)

17. Other expenses

Power and fugl

Rent

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Repair and malntenance of:

- Plant and cquipment

- Buildings

« Others

Printing & stationery

Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance expenses

Payment to statutory duditor (Refer details below}
Vehicle ruaning and maintenance

Fresght and forwarding

Legal and professional

Stores & spares consumed

Packing material consumed

Procurement commission

Brass Melting

Dross processing expenies

Sungdry balance write offinet)

Commission en currency and commedity derivatives
$ales Commission

Bank charges

Charity & Denation

Corporate Satial Responsibility
Communication expenses

Miscellanpous expenses

Details of payment made to suditors Is as follows:

As auditor:

- Statutory Judit fee
- Tax audit fee

- Others

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.270.88 2.197.03
32.95 3617
16.69 15.35
223.20 247,74
25551.72 2,496,259
Fat the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
1,159.25 708.26
1104 15.28
796.88 ann
2B.93 -
2,016.15 1,145.55
For the year ented For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
1,082.34 983.71
78.97 9.62
0.62 1.86
15156.93 1,002.19
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
4,107.09 3,394.92
206.83 24297
47.1% 39.33
41,53 31.29
536.20 519.56
83.95 99.72
68.99 £9.89
748 165
113 073
96.74 78.98
495 400
358 1187
100127 1,067.48
57.37 38.38
511.12 438,16
79.20 61.91
779.55 700.71
- 12.77
R 093
. 5.92
67.72 61.22
265.02 22511
12.77 17.22
0.25 -
46.05 63.87
10.25 10.28
£1.36 87.46
8,139.55 7,272.12
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
420 3.50
0.50 0.50
025 -

4.95

4.00
—_—




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

28 28.Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity Is shown below:

For the year ended March  For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
[ Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plan 8.20 6.79
Income tax effect {2.06) (.71}
6.13 5.08

29 28, Earnings pet share {EPS}

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average
@ number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Profit attributable to the equity holders 1,124.87 1,304.98
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 9,65,00,000 9,65,00,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share {face value INR 10 per share)* 1,17 1.35

*Thare is no convertible share hence, diluted EPS is equal to Basic EPS
# This is calculated on the basis of quarterly profits , which are not annualized.

3 FrucoTen)
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CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30. Commitment and Contingencles

A. Capital and Other Commitments

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts {net of advances) remaining to be executed on Capital Account - 767.50
and not provided for.
B. Contingent liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Contingent liability on account of service tax for the year 2015 to lune 2017 vide OlO A 17.92
Iv/09.13.2019-AD) DT 19/03/2021. )
Contingent liability on account of legal case in Madras High court filed by ex-workers of the 61.35 61.35
company.
Outstanding guarantee furnished by bank on behalf of the company in respect of provisional 132.13 132.13
assessment of Custom duty to Custom Department ) )
- Demand raised by Sales Tax/VAT authority during the assessment for £.Y. 2015-16 12.15 12.15
T Demand raised under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of manual C form for 2.88
F.Y.16-17 )
Demand raied U/s 68 of Income Tax Act for AY 21-22 437.25 857.47
Demand raied U/s 270A of Income Tax Act for AY 20-21 - 9.01
C. Guarantees {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
particul Asat As at
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Bank guarantees issued by bank 132.13 132.13
Total 132.13 132.13
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

31. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related party
relationship, transactions and outstanding balances where control exsists and with whom transactions have taken place
during the perfod are:

(1) Names of related parties and related party relationship
{(a) Keymanagement personnel and their relatives
. Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala - Director [resigned w.e.f 09.10.2023]

Mr. Mohan Agarwal - Director
Mr. Yasunobu Machida - Director {w.e.f. 23th April 2022 and resigned w.e.f. 04th Aug, 2023)
Mr. Raghav Agarwal- Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Suman Bala- Director [Resigned w.e.f 22 September 2023]
Mr. Keita Sobue w.e.f 21 May, 2021 to 31st March, 2022
Mr Shreechandra Singh Rana - Chief Executive Officer w.e.f 10 Dec, 2021
Ms.Deepika Mendiratta- Company Secretary [w.e.f 01st January 2022 to 22nd June 2022}
Ms. Neelam- Company - Secretray {w.e.f 01st August 2022]
Ms. Ridhima Bagla - Director [w.e.f 11 October 2023]
Mr. Yasutomo Inuki - Director jw.e.f. 08th August, 2023]
Mr. Akshay Agarwal - Director [w.e.f. 11th October, 2023)

{b) Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiaries & Associates
(i} Holding Company:-
CMR Green Technologies Limited

(i1) Fellow Subsidiaries (Subsidiary of Holding Company):-
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Private Limited
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited
CMR Welfare Foundation
CMR Green LLC- {w.e.f. 02.08.2023)

{c} Associate of Holding company:-
CMR Chiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd.
CMR-Chiho Recycling Technologies Private Limited
Nikket CMR Aluminium India Private Limietd

{d) Joint Venture Partner
Toyota Tsusho Corporation

(e} Subsldiaries of Joint Venture Partner
Toyota Tsusho india Private Limited

{f} Enterprises under same control
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMBR Tech Solutions Private Limited
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{il) The following table provides the total value of transact/ons that have been entered Into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Key management personnet & Fellow Subsldiaries, joint venture

their relatives Hotding partner, enterprises under same
control
Particulars
For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended March | ended March |ended March 31, |ended March 31,| ended March |ended March 31,
31, 2024 31, 2023 2024 2023 31,2028 2023
Transactions during the period:
Sale of goods
CMR Green Technologies Limited 3.24%.12 2,513.47
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited 534.76 1,858.07
Sanjivani Metal Trading Pvt Ltd 35.69
CAMA Aluminium Pwt. Lisited 515.45 -
¢MR Eco Alusminium Pyt Ltd 4,120.94 -
Tayota Tsushe Corporation 6,360.20 6,504.88
Sale of Store item
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited 7.09 0.03
CMR Atuminiem Pvt. Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Ltd 197 0.70
CtAR Green Technologies Limited 32.08 156.43
Safe of Propesty, Plant and Equipment
CIMR Nikkel india Private Limited
CMR Eco Alumintum Pyt Ltd 4.50 -
CMR Green Technolopies Limited 0.18 34.61
Purchase of goods
CMR Green Technologies Limited 48,865.36 41,011.75
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited 1,233.07 5,550.83
Sanjivam Metal Trading Prvate Limited 484.66 35.69
CMR Atuminium Pyt. Limiteo 3,074.75
CMR Eca Alumvinium Pyt Lid 2,023.52 3780

Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
CMR Green Technologies Limited 6.11 6.32
CMR Chihe Industries India Private Limited
CMR-Chiho Regycling Techralogy Private Limited

CMR Aluminium Put. Limited 0.56
CMR Bdikkel tndia Private Limited 0.46 5.08
Purchases of Store ltems

Limited 3110 17.20
CMR Algrmanium Pet. Limited 13.50 0.43
CMR Chihp Industries Limited
CMR Nikkei India Pyt Ltd 0.25
Expenses made by others on behalf of us
CMR Nikkel India Pvt Ltd 007
CMR Eco Aluminium Private Umited 240
CMR Green Technologies Limited 61.67 161.32
Expenses made on behalf of Co.
CMR Green Technologies Umited 18.48
CMR Eco Aluminium Pyt Ltd 0.59 083
CMR Aluminium Pvt. Umited 0.12 398
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Litnited
CIVIR Nikkei Indis Pvi Ltd 0.04 18.72
Commlssion
Toyata Tsusho India Private Limited 79.28 61.53
CMR Green Technologies Limited 965.29 862.59
[ntorest Recelved
MR Aluminium Pvt. Limited 40,36 27.08
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited 17.67

CMR Hikkel India Pyt Ltd

CMR Green Technologies Limited
Comemodity & Denatives (Gain/{Loss)
CMR Green Technologies Limited 1,276.46 934.45
Interest Paid

CMR Aluminium Pvt. Limited
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited 32,01
CMR Eco Atuminium Pyt 1td 13,90
CMR Nikkei India Pvt Ltd 169.05 12843
CMR Green Technolopies Limited 581.91 293.57
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Fellow Subsidiaries, Joint venture
Holding partner, enterprises under same
control
Far the year For the year For the year For the year Far the year For the year
ended Marth | ended March |ended March 31,)ended March 31, ended March |ended March 32,
31,2924 31,2023 2024 2023 31,2024 2023

Key management personnel &
thelr relatives

Particulars

Frefpht Expenses
Toyota Tsusho [ndia Private Limited 521 3.45

Sitting fees
Suman Bala 0.02 0.04

Remuneration paid
Deepika Mendiratta 0.75
Neelam Malik 4.00 .25
55 Rana 65.00 5441

Corporate Sacial Responsibility
CMR welfare Foundation 105.80

Job work Received
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvi Ltd . - - - 36.62

{ili) Balances as at the year end

Fellow Subsidiaries, Joint venture
Holding partner, entesprises under same
control

Key management personnel &
their relatives
Asat Asat
A Asa at
March 31, Asat s ot s at As

March 31,
2024 March 31, 2023| March 31, 2024| March 31,2023 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Trade payables
CMR Green Technologles Limited - 5,298.18 - -
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited 548.20 115.12
CMR-Chiho Recycling Technology Private Limited 024 0.24
CMR Eco Atuminium India Pyt Lt - 36.10
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited - -
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited 21,31 -
Payable to holding company on account of cutstanding derivative
cantracts

CMR Green Technologles Limited - 97.46 93.37
Advance From Customer
CMR Eco Aluminium India Pvt Lte 4,258.2%
Advance to Supplier
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limuted - 119
CMR Green Technologies Limited 369.63
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited - 1591

Trade Receivable
CR Chiho Industnes Indla Put Ltd 2179 21.79
Toyoia Tsusho Corparation - 398.43
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited 27.55
CMR Aluminium india Pvt Ltd 34.00 56.69
CMR Eco Aluminium India Pvt L1d

CMR Green Technotopies Limited

Corporate Guarantee given an behall of the company by -
Cutstanding as at the reporting period

ChAR Green Technologies Limited 15,585.00 15,585.00
Notes:-

Terms and conditions af transactlons with related garties

Hotes:

The sale and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction. Quistanding balances at the peried end are
unsecured. For the perload ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not recerded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. There has been
no guarantee provided or received for any related party receivable and payable. This assessment In undertaken each finangial period through examining the financla! position of
the related party and the market in which the refated party operates.
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32. Employee benefits

Defined Contributton Plans - General Description
Provident Fund:
The Company makes cantribution towards provident fund/ pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as

specified in the rules of the schemes, to the defined contribution scheme.

For the year ended Forthe year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Employers contribution to Provident fund {including Employee’s
Pension $cheme 1995)* 37.78 33.93
Total 37.78 33.93

* net of benefit of Rs Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs 0.64 Lakhs) received under Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Prosthan Yojna and Rs 2.08 Lacs {March'23- Rs 2.08 Lacs) towards
Aatmanirbhar Bharat Rozgar Yojana (ABRY)

Pefined Benefit Plans - General Description
Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific benefit. The
level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn
for each completed year of service with part theresf in excess of six months. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the prajected unit credit
tmethod, which recopnizes each period of service as piving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation
under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses {net of tax) are recogaized
immediately in the Other Comprehensive tncome [OCI).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the
gratuity plan:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Particulars Gratulty Gratuity
{Unfunded) {YUnfunded)

Change in benefit obligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 58.67 58.66
Acquisition adjustment - -
Current service cost 12.37 1111
Add: Past service cost
Add: Interest cost 4.32 4.25
Add: Actuarial (gain} / loss [5.200 {6.79)
Less: Benefits paid w12 {8.56)
Present value of oblipation as at the end of the period 66.04 58.67
Liabllity/ (Asset) recognized in the finoncial statements 66.04 53.67
Amount recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 12,37 11.11
Interest cost on benefit obligation 4.32 4,25
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 16.65 15.36
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic
assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising fr h, in fi ial ti

uari B ising from changes in financial assumptions 0.99 {0.80)
Experience adjustments [8.19) {5.99)
Amount of loss recognized In Other Comprehensive Income {8.20) (6.79)
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The principat assumptions used in determinling gratulty liability for the Company's plans are shown below:

Discount rate (%) 7.36 7.23
Expected rate of return on Plan assots (%) - -
Future salary increases {%) 8.00 8.00
Retirement Age (Years) 60 60
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 vears 3% 3%

From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%

Above 44 years 1% 1%
Mortality table 100% of IALM (2012-2014)

A guantltative sensitivity analysls for sipnificant assumptlon as at March 31, 2024 is as shown below:
Gratulty Plan

{Amount In Rs. lakhs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Dlscount rate Future salary increase
Discount rate 0.5% In¢rease 0.5% Dacrease 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.92) 437 3.82 (3.69

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 Is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan

{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary Increase
Discount rate 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.5M 3.99 356 {3.37}

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benedit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The followlng payments are expected contributions to the defined banefit plan in future years:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.
Within the niext 12 months {next annual reporting period) 17.96 15.43
Between 1and 2 years 0.75 0.69
Getween 2 and 3 years 0.81 0.73
Between 3 and 4 years 0.85 0.78
Between 4 and 5 years 0.50 0.79
Between 5 and & years 0.85 0.77
Beyond 6 years 43.91 39.48
Total expected payments 66.03 58.66

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period i5 19.89 years
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33, Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
A. FVTPL financial instruments :
Derivative Asset - - - -
B. Amottized Cost:
Loan to employees 5.13 4.39 5.13 4.39
Security deposits 183.45 129.66 183.45 129.66
Non Current Fixed deposits 20.28 18.73 20.28 18.73
Total 208.86 152.78 208.86 152.78
Financial liahilities
A, FVTPL:
Derivative liabilities - - - -
B. Amortized Cost:
Borrowings 1,201.08 1,801.63 1,201.08 1,801.63
1,201.08 1,801.63 1,201.08 1,801.63

The management assessed the trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities
{except derivatives and liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :-

Derivative financial instruments -

The fair value of fareign exchange forward contracts is determined using the foreign exchange spot and forward rates at the
balance sheet date.

The derivatives are entered into with the banks / counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

Borrowings:-
The fair values of the Company's interest bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow {DCF) method

using discount rate that refiects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting pericd.

Investments, loan to employees, security deposits and Interest accrued on fixed deposits:-
The fair value of investments in other equity instruments, loan to employees, security deposit and interest accrued on fixed
deposits approximates the carrying value and hence, the valuation technique and inputs have not been given.
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34. Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognized or disclosed are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based an the lowest
level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level 1: This leve! of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted [unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitles.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
such items, directly or indirectly.

Level 3: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation maodel based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable
currant market transactions in the same instruments nor based on available market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices In Significant Signlficant
active markets observable inputs  uncbservable Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Einancial assets
A, Amortized Cost:

Loan to employees March 31, 2024 5.13 - .13 -
Security deposit March 31, 2024 133.45 . 183.45 -
Non Current Fixed deposits March 31, 2024 20.28 - 20.28 -

Total 208.86 - 208.86 -
Financial lfakilitles
A. Amortized Caost;

Borrowings March 31, 2024 1,201.08 - 1,201.08 -

Total 1,201.08 - 1,201.08 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2024,

Quantitative disclosuras fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023

{Armount in Rs. Lakhs)
Fair value measurement using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Sipnificant Significant
active markets observable Inputs  unobservable inputs
[Level 1} {Lavel 2} {Level 3)

Financial assets
A. FVTPL financial instruments
Derivative Asset March 31,2023 - - - -

B. Amortized Cost:

Loan to employeas March 31,2023 4.39 - 4,39 -
Security deposit March 31,2023 129.66 - 129.66 -
Non Current Fixed dapasits March 31,2023 18.73 - 18.73 -

Total 152.78 - 152,78 -
Financlal liabilities
A, Amortized Cost:

Borrowings March 31,2023 1 801.63 - 1,801.63 -

Total 1,801.63 - 1,801.63 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2023,
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5. Fisancla) etk management obfectives and polizies

The Campany’s principat financial habilties casnpnse of tade payables, cther payables. security deposits eeceived. capital cregitcrs and employee related payables. The main purpote of thete hinarelal Labilties is to
Rinance the Company’s cperations and 10 provide gulraniees to support ity cperations. The Compary's principat financial assets include Trade and other cecetvables, and cash and cash egulvalent that cester cisectly
Hom its cperatlans. The Company a%so enters into dervalive ranyacuion

The Company I3 exposed to market risk, crecit risk and higulity risk. The Company’s senicr maragement oversess the management of these risky. The Company's senior management 1s responsible to ensure that
Campan‘(l financial risk acuvitles which are governed by approgriate polickes and procecures and that financul nshs are fi measured and L] with the Company's policies and elsk

Al for risk 11 purpeses ate camed out by specialls? teams that have the apprepaate skidls, expenente ano supervision. Itis the Company's policy that no trading in derbvatives
for speculative purpores may be undertaten. The Boara of Directors reviews and agrees policles fer managing each of these nsky, which are summaritec below

Market rhik

Market risk 3 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finanaal enstrument will fluctuate because of change in markel price. 3%arket risk comprise of interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and commadity
itk

The seniiirvity anatyis 1n the following sections relate 1o the position as at March 31, 1024 ang March 31, 2023

la) tntesett rate ik

tnterey? rate risk Is the ritk that the fair valee of Tuture tash Mows of 2 frarcal watrument will Tuctuate because of changes s market Interest rates. The [, g 1able the hnty a3
poisitie chinge in Intergst rates en that partian of loans and Berrowings affected. after the impact of hedge accounting. With 3l gther vauiables held constany, the Company's prefit before tax |8 affected through the
Impact an ficating rate borrowings, 3s fallows:

—_— {Amouak In Rs.lakhi}

Increasef decrease EHect on profit

Il 1 L

US doflar Borrowings

Mareh 31, 2024

USD Basrowings 0%

S0 Sorrowings 0.5

March 31,2022

USD Barrowingy 05

USD Barrewines 05

The assumed movement in basis polats for the weterest rate 1enuinnty analyss o bited on the tutrently aoservable
Falr value sensitlvity analysls for fxed rate lnstruments ;-

The Comparty coes net have any flxed rate financal assets and habdities a1 faie value through prafit and loss. Therefore. 3 change in interedt rates di the reparting date would seither affect prafil or koss nar atfect
equity.

{b) Forelgn currency risk

the Company Is exposed L foreign exchange nik artung frem foseigh cusrency transactions primarity with regpect to USD. EUR & CHY. Foresgn exchange 1isk arises fram future commenclal transactions and recognized
astet and Uabikitles denaminated In 3 currency that i nat the Cormpany's funttional turrenty. The Comaany IMPOALs faw matenals and capltal goods which expases it ta foreign currency risk. The Campany holds
denvalive Toreign currency forward comracts to mitigate the risk of change in exchange rate oo foceign cutrenty The # ing tables the itytoar kiv pesiible change in U3D, fUR
& CHY eachange rates, with all athes vanables held constant. The imgact an the Company’s prafit before 3z 15 cue to ¢hanges i the fair vatue of moaetary assers and fiabilities.

Change In USD rate Eftect en prafit Change Ln EUR EHect on profit ChangelaCNY  Elfecton
before tan rate belfore tax rate profit befare
Rs.
A-Mar-24 5% 31-Mar-24 5% - I-Mar-28 +5%
Y . % . %
H-tar-23 5% 1EY 31-Mar-23 5% LLER) I1-Mar-23 5% {134
SN 28691 5% 169 -5% 133

[e ICommedity price sk

The Company is aflected by the price volatitity of certaln commaodities. The gperating actwities of the Comparty require the ongaidg purchase of steel, cocper and uminium. The Compary is not expcied to commodity
(d) Credh rsk

Ceedit 15k I5 the cisk that counterparty will not mees its obligations unger 3 flnancial milrument or custames Contracy, IRZINE to 3 financial kass. The Company is expased Lo credlt risk from ils cperating activitias

trate ang fram its i agtivities, induding descuts with banks, Manapement haz a crecit poboy w plate 3nd the exposire Lo credit risk is monltered on an angoing Basis. Credit evaluations
are pest. anall 3 iting cradit over 3 Cefan 3mount
) Trade recebvables
(9} Customer credit risk is as per the palicy, p and contrel relating 1o customer crecht nsk manygement Cr:m: :uala:v ofa cuttomer 5 aasessed based on an extensive credic
An impaiement anatysly is performed at each reparting cate an an \nanngush basis for majar cherts. The is based on Lose: i cats. The ta erecit risk at the reperting

date is the carrylng value of each clais of firanclyl assets iscicred below The Company doet nat hold cellateral 33 secutity. The Company evalaalu the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables a3 low en
the baus of past defaul! rates of Its Customers.
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The agelng of trade recelvaties at ihe reporling date was:

{Amaunt in Rs. lakhs]

Particulars Arat Asat
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
o~ 180 cays 18,833,448 10,497.47
Abge 180 dan G6.29 119

The Company’s maximum gxposure te eredit eisk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2024

Particutars Asat
March 31, 2024

Interest accrued but not recetved 0.00
Hom Cuttent Fixed Depasis 028
Securily Depusits | Cutrent & Non-urcent) 183.45
Secunty Deposits (Current)h -

Leanto employees 5.13
Trace recelvable) 11,950.73

The Camzany monitors Its risk of a shartaze of funds dong 2 iguicity plarming exercise.

The 3 isto ahalanee of funding and lexiblity trrough the use af short term borrowing facilities ike bank eveedralt, cash credit facihty and buyeres Credit facility. The
As at March 33, 7023 {Amount In R1_ takhi)
Partiqulars On demand Lessthan 12 1.5 years 35 yeais Total
months
Berrowings 10168 600000 120108 . 750476
Current of long term g - . . . .
iRefer to note 130
Seturity deposit lrom cuslomers/ others 13.66 . 1066
Interest accrued but nat due an bazrowings . 1291 - : 1291
Iaterest dccrued and due on barrowings . .
Emplovee retated liabllitier i 63.78 - - (28]
Pavable lor capitat gooes - 1e6.56 - B 146.56
Interest Pavable 10 related parues . - - . -
Trace pavables - L9666 - . 1.986.66
Payable on Forward Confract - - - L] -
303.64 822358 1,701.c8 - 9,728.34
As at March 31,2023 {Amaunt in R, lakhy)
Partikulasy Ondemand tessthan 12 1.5vyeass 5 years Total
fronthy
Borrowlngs L1514 5.017.56 1B01.6) 7980.23
Current iies of leng 1erm b 3] - - - -
tRefer to note 131
Security ceposit feom custamers/ others - 15 65 - - 15.66
tnterest accnaed but nat due An Borrewangy 019 . - 20.19
tntereat ccrued and Cut 0N BOTToWINES . -
Emplavee related babilites . E0.97 . - £0.97
Pavabie for capital goeas . 0 . . 54.03
Interest Pavable (o refated parties . - . -
Trade pavables . 7.265 46 - - 7.265.46
Pavable on Forward CoRITact . - - z .
1.121.04 !1‘45'}.85 1,801.63 - 1%,197.53

Ex¢estlve fltk concentration
Concentratsons arise when 2 number of counterparties are engaged In skmilar bupiness atthaties, or acthnties in the same geographical region, or have economic features that woutd cause their abilizy to meet
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36. Segment Information

As per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments"”, identification of segment is based on the manner in which the entity's Chief Operating Decision makers'
{CODM) review the business components regularly to make Decisions about allocating resources to segment and in assessing its performance.

The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level 2s one segment "Aluminium ingots and molding"

a) Summary of total revenue by Geographical area for the period ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Products and services

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 33, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue From External Customers
India 1,29,458.08 1,13,449.43
Qutside India 8,314.88 7,570.91
Total 1,37,772.96 1,21,020.34
b} Summary of non- current assets by geographical location is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Property plant and equipment
India 10,843.17 10,325.91
Qutside India . .
Intangible
India 0.00 0.63
Qutside India - R
Capital Work-in-progress
India 870.98 1,269.72
Qutside India - -
Intangible under development
India - -
Qutside India - -
Other Non current assets
India 701.30 446.23
Qutside India - -
Tota! 12,415.45 12,046.50

c} Revenue from major customer

g{ﬁ,'\.
O Revenue from major customers with percentage of total revénue are as below:-

Name of The Customer

For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue Revenue % Revenue Revenue %
Endurance Technologies Ltd. 23,276.25 16.89% 16,275.12 13.45%
India Yamaha Motor Pvt. Ltd. 18,081.28 13.12% 11,629.42 9.61%
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36 {b}. Ratio Analysis and its elements:

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | % change
Current ratic |Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.61 1.60 0.75%
Shareholder's Equity -
- i ffecti i f
Debt-EQuity |1 otal Debt Effective portion o 0.36 0.40| -11.01%
Ratio cash flow hedge
reserve
Earnings for debt
Debt Service sercr:::z;;i;xes + Debt service = Interest
N ' . proi! Payments + Principal 1.20 0.41] 192.34%
Caoverage ratio|Non-cash
R Repayments
aoperating
expenses
Average Shareholder’s
Profi Equity - Effecti
Retlturn on‘ Net Profits aftaer qulltv ective 0.01 0.02 18.94%
Equity ratic  [|taxes portion of cash flow
hedge reserve
| t
nventory . _|Cost of goods sold |Average Inventory 12.98 12.15 6.84%
Turnover ratio
Trade
ivabl Net sales = Total |A
Receivable et sales = Tota ver?ge Trade 12.26 11.23 9.10%
Turnover sales - sales return|Receivable
Ratio
Trade Payable |Net Purchases = Average Trade
Turnover Total Purchases - & 26.80 24.91 7.58%
. Payables
Ratio purchases return
Net Capital Working capital =
Net sales = Total
Turnover Current assets - 15.56 13.80 12.70%
. sales - sales return L e
Ratio Current liabilities
Net Profit Net sales = Total sales
) Net Profit 0.01 0.01 -24.28%
ratio sales return
Capital Employed =
Return on Earnines before Tangible Net Worth +
Capital . 8 Total Debt -Intangbile 0.12 0.10 20.24%
interest and taxes . .
Employed assets including
Goodwill
Return on
Net Profit Investment N/A N/A N/A
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37. Capital Management

The Board’s policy maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and general reserves attributable to the equity holders. The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Refer to note 13 & 17) 8,105.29 8,580.77
Trade payables (Refer to note 16) 1,986.66 7,196.10
Other financials liabilities {Refer to note 17) 334.37 244.22
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {Refer to note 11{i}) (49.58) {9.19)
Net debt 10,376.74 16,011.91
Equity share capital 9,650.00 9,650.00
Other equity 11,385.25 10,254.24
Total Capital 21,035.25 19,904.24
Capital and net debt 31,411.99 35,916.16
Gearing ratio 33.03% 44.58%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the periods end March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023.

38. In light of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has spent/provision for Rs 52.37 Lakhs on account of Corporate Sacial
Responsibilities (CSR}).

particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

[a) Gross amount required to be spent 52.37 63.87
[b) Amount spent on:

{i) Constructionfacquisition of any asset 6.15
(i) On purpose other than (i) above - -
{iii} Unspent amount to be transferred to a specific fund account 52.37 57.68
{c) Detail of related party transactions out of {b) above:

- CMR Welfare Foundation 105.80 -

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had amended Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 vide The Companies (Amendment) Act 2020, wherein a proviso
was added to Sub-Section [5) of Section 135 which states that any amount remaining unspent under section 135 {$), pursuant to any ongoing project,
fulfilling such conditions as may be prescribed, undertaken by a company in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy, shall be transferred by
the company within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year to a special account to be epened by the company in that behalf for that
financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corparate Social Responsibility Account, and such amount shall be speat by the company in
pursuance of its obligation towards the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three financial years from the date of such transfer, failing
which, the company shail transfer the same to a Fund specified in Schedule VI, within a period of thirty days fram the date of completion of the third
financial year, Accordingly, the Company had made provision of unspent amount of Rs 57.68 lacs during the previous year and Rs. 52.37 lacs during the
current year.

The Company has during the current year transferred an amount of Rs. 52.37 lacs to specified bank account.

In Separate CSR Unspent
Particulars Afc
Opening Balance 70.36
Amount transferred to separate CSR Unspent Afc 57.68
Amount spent during the period 106.36
Llosing Balance 21.68

Detalls related to unspent obligations:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance in separate CSR unspent account 21.68 70.36
Unspent amount to be transferred to a specified fund account 52.37 -

74.05 70.36
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39, Detalls of dues to micro and small enterptises as deflned under the MSMED Act, 2006

Partlculars

Asat

March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the Enterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting
period

39.17

47.28

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 5ection 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of

The amount of interest due and payatie for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interast accrued and remaining unpaid ar the end of each accounting year

‘The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

FRN:0407 143
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40. Disclosure of Leases

The Company has adogted Ind AS 116, effective annual reponting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applicd the standard toits ease using modified retraspestive aparoach, and their elfect
recognised on the date of initial application {April 1, 2015, Ac ghy. the € y has nat d comparatrve informatian, instead, the ingially applying this standard has resulted in
recognusing a right-of-use assets of A3 945.61 lakhs and a correspondng least Hiatility Nil

Ason April 1, 20223, Right-of use assets of Rs. 416.09 1a¢s were recognised and presented separately in The bajance shoot. Lease liabilites of s 366.82 lacs were recognised and presented
separately in the balance sheot

Operating lease : company as lesser

The Company has entered into operating ieases for factory lang & buitdings h tease terms from one year 10 e yoars.

The Company has utilised hindsight in determining the fease Terms where £ontracts contained options to extend of terminate the deate
13l Qirggt costs are exctuded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The hted geaf & s | Bareowing rate applied to leasc fiabilities at the date of initial application was 9.00%.

The Company has entered into company leases for fxctaey land & buildings with Icase terms of Five years.

Set out below are the carrying amounis of right-of-use assels rec d and the during the year:
Particutars Factory land and Lease Hold land
building

As at April 01, 2022 926.36

Addition

Depreclation expense for the period fram April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 9.62

A5 at March 31, 2023 . 916.74

Addition 416.09

Deprecration expense for the penad from Apnil 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 6935 962

As at March 31, 2024 336.74 G012

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease [abllities and the movements during the year:

Particulars Amount

As at April 01, 2023 .

Addition 416.0%

Accretion of interest for the period from April 2023 to March 2024 2898

Payments tor the period fram April D1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 78.25

As at March 31, 2024 366.82

Current lease liabiltles G3.28

Non-Current lease liabilties 298.53

Considering the Jease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is considesed a1 9%

Undiscountcd lease liabilities ave as follows:

Particulars On demand Less than 12 15 years >5 years Tornd Carrying
noount of
linbilites

Asal March 31, 2024 - 9782 342 82 - - 366.82

As at March 31, 2023 - - - - D -

Cansidening the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for fease habudines 13 conssdered 31 9%

The followlng are the Ised In statement of profit and foss for the pelod/year

Particulars March 31, 2024 Masch 31, 2023

Depreciation exgease of eight-ol-use assots 78.97 9.62

Interest expense on lease liabllities 2898 .

Short Term and wasehouse lease 1.81 :

Total ised In profit or loss 109.76 9.62
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41. in line with the applicable Accounting Standards, during the year, pre-operative expenses of Rs. Nil (March 31 2023: Nil) up to the date of capitalization
have been capitalised,

a42. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required.

43.The Company's operations and revenue were impacted on account of disruption In economic activity due to Covid - 19. The management believes that the
overall impact of the pandemic is short term and temporary in nature and is not ltkely to have any significant impact on the recoverability of the carrylng value
of its assets and the future operations. The management Is closely monitoring the developments and possible effects that may result from the pandemic on its
financlal condition, liquidity and operations and is actively working to minimize the impact of this unprecedented situation.

44.The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020 which will impact the contributions / provision by the Company towards Provident
Fund and gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for qualifying the financials impact are yet to be
framed. Based on the initial assessment by the Company, the additional impact on Pravident Fund contributions by the Company is not expected to be
material, whereas the likely additional impact on gratuity liability by the Company could be material. The Company will complete thelr evaluation and will give
appropriate Impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are
published.

45, Other Statutory Information

{i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(i1} The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(ifi) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv] The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company have not made any loans or advanced In the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties {as defined under
Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

a) repayable on demand or

b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficlaries);
or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(tes), including forelgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
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